
 

GRAND VALLEY METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 

ADA TOWNSHIP   ALGOMA TOWNSHIP  ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP  ALPINE TOWNSHIP  BELDING  BYRON TOWNSHIP  CALEDONIA TOWNSHIP  CANNON TOWNSHIP CASCADE TOWNSHIP  CEDAR SPRINGS 

COOPERSVILLE  COURTLAND TOWNSHIP  EAST GRAND RAPIDS  GAINES TOWNSHIP  GEORGETOWN TOWNSHIP  GRAND RAPIDS  GRAND RAPIDS TOWNSHIP  GRANDVILLE  GREENVILLE 

 HASTINGS  HUDSONVILLE  IONIA  JAMESTOWN TOWNSHIP  KENT COUNTY  KENTWOOD  LOWELL  MIDDLEVILLE  OTTAWA COUNTY  PLAINFIELD TOWNSHIP  ROCKFORD 

 SAND LAKE   TALLMADGE TOWNSHIP  WALKER  WAYLAND  WYOMING 

678 FRONT AVENUE NW   SUITE 200    GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN 49504    PH. 616 77-METRO (776-3876)    FAX 774-9292    WWW.GVMC.ORG 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

GVMC BOARD MEETING 
 

November 4, 2013 
 

Immediately Following Breakfast 
L. William Seidman Center 

GVSU Downtown Grand Rapids 
DeVos Boardroom 

4th Floor 
 

 
 
 
1) Approval of October 2013 Minutes – Attachment 

 
 

2) Public Comment 
 
 
3) GVMC Officers and Executive Committee 2013-2014 – Attachment  
 
 
4) Natural Resources Update & SAW Grant Resolution - Attachment 

 
 

5) Regional Prosperity  Initiative Update 
 
 
6) Adjourn 

 



GVMC Board Meeting Minutes 1 

 

GRAND VALLEY METRO COUNCIL 

 

Board Meeting 
 

October 3, 2013 

 

8:30 a.m. 

 

Kent County Commission Chambers  

Grand Rapids 

 

 

MINUTES 

 

 

1. Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 8:30 a.m. by Chair Jim Buck.   

 

Members Present: 

Alex Arends  Alpine Township 

Rick Baker  At-Large Member 

Brent Boncher  Courtland Township 

Jim Buck   City of Grandville  

Richard Clanton  City of Kentwood 

Daryl Delabbio  Kent County 

Mike DeVries  Grand Rapids Township 

Steve Grimm  Cannon Township 

George Heartwell  City of Grand Rapids 

Carol Hennessey  Kent County 

Don Hilton, Sr.  Gaines Township 

Denny Hoemke  Algoma Township 

Barb Holt   City of Walker 

Jim Holtrop  Ottawa County 

John Hoppough  City of Greenville 

Mark Howe  City of Lowell 

Cindy Janes  Cascade Township 

Mark Lemoine  At-Large Member 

Mick McGraw  At-large Member 

Cy Moore   Treasurer 

Megan Mullendore  City of Belding  

Jack Poll   City of Wyoming 

Michael Selden  City of Wayland 

Jay Spencer  Plainfield Township 

Roger Towsley  Village of Sand Lake 

Al Vanderberg  Ottawa County 

Bill VerHulst  City of Wyoming 

 



GVMC Board Meeting Minutes 2 

 

 

 

 

Members Absent: 

Jerry Alkema  Allendale Township 

Ken Bergwerff  Jamestown Township 

Dan Carlton  Georgetown Township 

Tom Butcher  Grand Valley State University 

Brian Donovan  City of East Grand Rapids 

Jason Eppler  City of Ionia 

Rebecca Fleury   Village of Middleville 

George Haga  Ada Township  

Brian Harrison  Caledonia Township  

Doyle Hayes  At-Large Member 

Elias Lumpkins, Jr. City of Grand Rapids 

Brenda McNabb-Stange City of Hastings 

Audrey Nevins-Weiss Byron Township 

Steven Patrick  City of Coopersville 

Jim Saalfeld  Kent County 

Milt Rohwer  City of Grand Rapids 

Toby VanEss  Tallmadge Township 

Patrick Waterman  City of Hudsonville 

Michael Young  City of Rockford 

 

Others Present: 

Abed Itani   Grand Valley Metro Council 

Dennis Kent  MDOT 

Gayle McCrath  Grand Valley Metro Council 

Dal McBurrows  MDOT 

Peter Varga  The Rapid 

John Weiss  Grand Valley Metro Council 

 

 

2. Minutes 

 

MOTION: To Approve the Minutes of the September GVMC Board Meeting.  MOVE - 

Howe.  SUPPORT - Janes.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

 

3. Public Comment 

 

None 

 

 

 

 

 



GVMC Board Meeting Minutes 3 

 

4. Oath of Office 

 

Kent County Clerk Mary Hollinrake administered the Oath of Office to Brent Boncher, Trustee, 

Courtland Township. 

 

Brent stated he was excited to be part of the Metro Council and looks forward to working with 

everyone. 

 

 

5. Presentation on Regional Prosperity Initiative  

 

John Weiss, Al Vanderberg, and Rick Chapla of the Right Place discussed the Governor’s 

Regional Prosperity Initiative and the request for a resolution to endorse GVMC as the recipient 

of the grant for Region Four. 

 

John reported Michigan has 84 different service districts for state & federal supported sectors 

(education, transportation, mental health, etc.).  The Governor’s goal is to maintain the integrity 

of locals with the efficiencies of larger districts.  The region GVMC is a part of (Region 4) 

encompasses 13 counties.  Mandated partners in the process are transportation, higher 

education, adult education, economic development and workforce development. 

 

The objective on the Tier 1 Grant is to develop a process with monthly meetings which 

develops a five-year regional prosperity plan including five key regional prosperity goals. 

 

Conversation to-date has centered on creating a steering committee with representatives self-

selected from the five mandated participating groups.  The board would include 21-25 members 

(3 from each group) and At-large members representing other sectors. 

 

There is a high expectation from Lansing that we set the bar and lead the initiative. 

 

MOTION – To Approve the Resolution to Endorse GVMC as the Recipient of the 

Regional Prosperity Initiative Grant.  MOVE – Grimm.  SUPPORT – DeVries.  MOTION 

CARRIED 

 

 

6. November Board Meeting – Change of Date 

 

MOTION - To Change Date of November GVMC Board Meeting to Monday, November 

4, 10:00 a.m. at the L. William Seidman Center of GVSU Downtown Grand Rapids.  

MOVE – Hilton.  SUPPORT – Janes.  MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

7. Adjournment – 9:45 a.m. 

 

MOTION – To Adjourn.  MOVE – Janes.  SUPPORT – Baker.  MOTION CARRIED. 



















Kent County Drain Commissioner

Lake 
Michigan

Rogue River

Sparta Township

Kent County Road Commission

Solon Township

Byron Township

Alpine Township

Village of
Sparta 

City of 
Grand Rapids

Tyrone Township

Bowne Township

Nelson Township

Grattan Township

Gaines Township

Cannon Township

Lowell Township

Oakfield Township

Spencer Township

Algoma Township

Plainfield Township

Cascade Township

City of Walker

Courtland Township

Caledonia Township

Vergennes Township

City of 
Wyoming

City of Kentwood

Grand Rapids
 Township

City of 
Grandville

City of Lowell

City of Rockford

City of 
East 

Grand Rapids

City of Cedar Springs

Village of 
Spring Lake

Olive Township

Polkton Township

Wright Township

Robinson Township

Chester Township

Blendon Township

Zeeland Township

Crockery Township

Allendale Township

Jamestown Township

Tallmadge Township

Holland Township

Georgetown Township

Park Township

Spring Lake Township

City of Holland

Grand 
Haven Township

Port Sheldon Township

City of 
Grand Haven City of Coopersville

City of Hudsonville

City of Ferrysburg

City of Zeeland

Fla
t Rive r

T horn
ap

ple
 River

Grand R iver

Gr
an

d R
ive

r

Thornapple River

Grand River

Flat
 Ri

ver

Grand R iver

Grand River

Montcalm County

Delta Township

Walton Township

Kalamo Township

Roxand Township

Hamlin Township

Eaton Township

Chester Township

Sunfield Township

Carmel Township

Bellevue Township

Benton Township Windsor Township

Oneida Township

Brookfield Township

Eaton Rapids Township

Vermontville Township

City of Charlotte

City of Eaton Rapids

City of Grand Ledge

City of Lansing

City of Potterville

City of Olivet

City of Lansing
City of Lansing

Barry Township

Hope Township

Irving Township

Assyria Township

Carlton Township

Rutland Township

Baltimore Township

Castleton Township

Prairieville Township

Woodland Township

Johnstown Township

Thornapple Township

Orangeville Township

Hastings Township

Maple Grove Township

Yankee Springs Township City of Hastings

Dalton Township

Holton Township

Fruitland Township

Ravenna Township

Egelston Township Moorland Township Casnovia Township

Blue Lake Township

Fruitport Township

Cedar Creek Township

Sullivan Township

Muskegon Township

City of Muskegon

Laketon Township

Montague Township

City of Norton Shores

White River Township

Whitehall Township
City of Whitehall

City of Montague

City of North Muskegon

City of Muskegon Heights
City of Roosevelt Park

Berlin Township

Lyons Township
Ionia Township

Danby Township

Keene Township

Ronald Township

Boston Township Orange Township

Odessa Township

Orleans Township

Sebewa TownshipCampbell Township

Portland Township

Easton Township

North Plains Township
Otisco Township

City of Ionia

City of Belding

City of Portland

Grant Township Ensley Township

Croton Township

Everett Township

Brooks Township

Dayton Township

Ashland Township

Garfield Township

Sherman Township

Bridgeton Township

Big Prairie Township

Sheridan Township

City of Fremont

City of Newaygo

Goodwell TownshipLincoln TownshipDenver Township City of White Cloud
Wilcox Township

City of Grant Day TownshipPine Township

Cato Township

Ferris Township

Home Township

Crystal TownshipSidney Township

Pierson Township

Winfield Township

Fairplain Township

Richland Township

Bushnell Township Bloomer Township

Reynolds Township Belvidere Township

Montcalm Township

Douglass Township

Eureka Township

Evergreen Township

Maple Valley Township

City of Greenville

City of Stanton

City of Carson City

Barry County

Ottawa County

Muskegon County

Newaygo County

Eaton County

Ionia County

µ
0 6.5 133.25

Miles

Legend
Major River
Lower_Grand_Watershed
MS4 Permitte Jurisdcition - SAW Grant App. Participant

© 2013 REGIS All Rights Reserved 
 
This map does not represent a legal document.  It is intended to serve as an aid in graphic 
representation only.  Information shown on this map is not warranted for accuracy and should be 
verified through other means.  Any duplication is restricted under copyright laws and the 
Enhanced Access to Public Records Act, PA 462 of 1996, as amended.  
 
Other Non REGIS data downloaded from: Michigan Geographic Data Library  
 
 

MS4 PERMITTEES PARTICIPATING IN THE
SAW GRANT APPLICATION

© 2013 REGIS All Rights Reserved 
 
This map does not represent a legal document.  It is intended to serve as an aid in graphic 
representation only.  Information shown on this map is not warranted for accuracy and should be 
verified through other means.  Any duplication is restricted under copyright laws and the 
Enhanced Access to Public Records Act, PA 462 of 1996, as amended.  
 
Non-REGIS data downloaded from Michigan Center for Geographic Information  
 
 



 
Please join us for an 

Open House 
To celebrate the years of service of: 

 

James R. Buck 
 

Wednesday, November 13, 2013 
From 3:00 – 6:00 pm 

 
Sunnybrook Country Club 

624 Port Sheldon Road 
Georgetown Township, MI  49418 

 



 

 

 

GUEST PARKING PERMIT 
Valid Date(s):     Monday November 4, 2013 

Valid Parking Lot:    Mt. Vernon Lot   

Authorized By: Russell M. Wolff - Director          
Pew Campus Security & Regional Centers                             Grand Valley Metro Council 
 

  

 Place on dash to the left of steering wheel.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Instructions 

 This permit is to be used for guests of GVSU only. Students, faculty and staff of GVSU are not eligible for guest parking 

privileges.  

 Please display this permit in its entirety on the dashboard of your vehicle, text facing up, to the left of your steering wheel. 

 Do not cut, fold, write on or alter this page.  The permit should be a full sheet of paper, instructions included. 

 This permit is only valid for the date indicated in the parking lots noted on the permit.  Parking in any other lot on campus 

may result in a parking citation. 

 Do not attempt to alter, modify or change this permit in any way.  Doing so will void the permit and may result in a parking 

citation. 

 For a map of the campus and surrounding area, visit www.gvsu.edu/maps.  

 

***This permit is not valid for the Fulton Lot. Fulton Lot parking is specifically reserved for Conference Guests and events booked through Conference & Events Planning *** 

http://www.gvsu.edu/maps

	GVMC Agenda Packet 11.13 - FULL
	GVMC 11-13 Board Meeting Agenda
	10- 2013 Board   Minutes
	Nominations
	SAW Grant Info
	MS4 Participant Map
	Buck Invite

	Parking Pass

